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HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION
NOVEMBER 19, 2018
DEMOLITION AND RELOCATION PERMITS
HDP-2018-0595
2500 Inwood Place

PROPOSAL

Demolish part of a ca. 1951 building and construct a side addition and auxiliary dwelling unit
(ADU).

ARCHITECTURE

Two-story, irregular-plan, flat- and shed-roofed building; wood and brick masonry siding;
casement aluminum-sash windows.

RESEARCH

Eugene and Doris Wukasch lived at 2500 Inwood Place beginning in 1951. Eugene moved
out around 1971, while Doris lived in the house until at least 1992. Eugene was a native
Austinite who graduated from UT with a degree in architectural engineering. As principal
of the firm Wukasch & Associates, he was a prolific church designer, completing more than
70 religious buildings in Austin and around Texas between 1959 and 1969. His designs
incorporated historical themes into a modern style and were recognized by local
newspapers, a statewide architectural publication, and a national ecclesiastical design
competition. Wukasch & Associates also designed fire stations, schools, master plans,
retirement apartment buildings, and houses. Wukasch was a historic preservation advocate
who planned Waterloo Park and Symphony Square, both projects involving restoration of
historic buildings, and restored several local landmarks. Doris worked for the Wukasch
architectural firm and later taught in a public school.

It is not clear if Eugene Wukasch designed 2500 Inwood Place. It was constructed in 1951,
before he started his own firm in 1953-54. At the time, he was working at Jessen Jessen
Millhouse and Greeven; it seems likely that he was involved in the design.

Several changes have been made to the building. A second-story frame addition was
constructed at the rear around 1957, a carport at the north end was enclosed in 1974, and
the house was divided into a duplex in 1979. The second-story addition falls within the
historic period (50+ years).

PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS

The project includes the removal of the enclosed carport and a small portion of the west
wall, and construction of a one-story addition with a footprint that is smaller at the front
and expanded to the rear. The addition will be clad in brick, hardiplank lap siding, and
hardiplank panel siding and feature aluminum-sash casement windows. It will be capped
with a metal shed roof and have a footprint of 807 square feet.

The ADU will be located directly west of the house, with the same setback from the street.
It will be clad in hardiplank board and batten and panel siding and capped with a metal
shed roof with parapet walls. It will have a footprint of 540 square feet.
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STAFF COMMENTS

The building may meet the criteria for designation as a historic landmark.

Designation Criteria—Historic Landmark

1) The building is 50 years old, having been constructed around 1951.

2) The building retains a relatively high degree of integrity. A second story was added
in 1957, within the historic period; and a carport was enclosed in 1974.

3) Properties must meet two historic designation criteria for landmark designation
(City of Austin Land Development Code, Section 25-2-352). The property may
demonstrate significance according to two criteria: architecture and historical
association.

a. Architecture. The house is designed in the Midcentury Modern style and may
possess architectural distinction.

b. Historical association. Eugene and Doris Wukasch lived in the house from
1951 until approximately 1971 (Eugene) and at least 1992 (Doris). Wukasch
was a prominent church architect in Texas whose firm grew to design a range
of building types. He was not known for his residential designs. However,
there may be significant historical associations.

c. Archaeology. The property was not evaluated for its potential to yield
significant data concerning the human history or prehistory of the region.

d. Community value. The property does not appear to have a unique location,
physical characteristic, or significant feature that contributes to the
character, image, or cultural identity of the city, a neighborhood, or a
particular group.

e. Landscape feature. The property is not a significant natural or designed
landscape with artistic, aesthetic, cultural, or historical value to the city.

The proposed project removes the enclosed carport, a feature that has been substantially
altered. The addition is designed in a sensitive style and is one story. However, it is not set
back from the front wall of the existing house, and the new brick veneer cladding on the
east wall may be mistaken for original construction.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Postpone the case or initiate historic designation to allow further research and evaluation
of the building as a potential historic landmark, particularly whether Eugene Wukasch was
the architect and how the house compares to his other work. If the Commaission votes to
release the permit, then staff recommends that the applicant be encouraged to differentiate
the brick veneer on the east wall from the existing brick (even slightly), and that the permit
be released upon completion of a City of Austin Documentation Package, consisting of
photographs of all elevations, a dimensioned sketch plan, and a narrative history, for
archiving at the Austin History Center.
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LOCATION MAP

N [”7 7 SUBJECT TRACT NOTIFICATIONS
i} CASE#: HDP-2018-0595
- PENBING €455 2500 INWOOD PLACE

L _ 2 ZONING BOUNDARY

Thiz preduct is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal,
engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and represents only the
approximate relative location of property boundaries.

1 "= 1 67 ! This product has been produced by CTM for the sole purpose of geographic reference. Mo warmanty is made
by the City of Austin regarding specific accuracy or completeness.
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PROPERTY INFORMATION

Photos
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Detail of primary entrance.
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Detail of carport.
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West elevation.

Occupancy History

Completed by Historic Preservation Office staff
October 2018

1949 Address not listed

1952-68 J. Eugene and Doris L. Wukasch, owners
Draftsman, Jessen Jessen Millhouse and Greeven (1952); architect and engineer,
2000 Guadalupe Street (1959-1968)

Linda C. Wukasch, renter (1968 only)
Student

1973-77 Mrs. Doris L. Wukasch, owner
Teacher, public school

Susan E. Wukasch (1973, 1977)
No occupation listed

Jean E. Wukasch (1973 only)
No occupation listed

Johnathan E. Wukasch (1977 only)
Student

1986 M. S. Kosub
No occupation listed

1992 Doris Wukasch, owner
No occupation listed
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Background Research

Joe Eugene Wukasch was born in 1921 in Texas to Joe and Alma Wukasch, who ran a
grocery store at 2000 Guadalupe Street. Eugene attended Austin High School and the
University of Texas, graduating with a degree in architectural engineering. He briefly
worked at Lockheed Aircraft as an engineering draftsman, then joined the Navy in 1944.
After he left the Navy, he worked as a draftsman at Jessen Jessen Millhouse and Greeven
for two years. In 1953 or 1954, he opened his own architectural firm, Wukasch &
Associates, in the former location of his family’s grocery store.

Wukasch was a prolific church designer, completing more than 70 religious building
designs between 1959 and 1969. The Austin American noted his “statewide reputation in
church design” and “sensitive blending of the traditional with warm simplicity.” Wukasch
himself spoke about the need to “build something modern but keep alive the spirit of our
heritage.” He incorporated historical forms into contemporary design and materials for
congregations such as Prince of Peace Lutheran Church, which was awarded honorable
mention in a national ecclesiastical design competition in 1957 and featured on the cover of
Texas Architect in 1958; Windsor Park Presbyterian (now Austin Mennonite), heralded as
“one of the most attractive and uniquely designed Presbyterian churches in Austin”; First
Presbyterian Church; and many more in Austin and around the state. Wukasch also
participated in a national conversation about churches’ changing needs: he served on the
board of the American Society for Church Architecture, attended conferences and seminars
on religious design, and wrote about church design for religious periodicals.

Though best known for ecclesiastical design, especially in the early years, Wukasch’s firm
grew to design a range of buildings across Texas. It designed public buildings, fire stations,
schools, master plans, and houses (mostly additions and renovations). Wukasch invented a
new design for clay masonry units that could be used as solar screens for high-reflectivity
buildings, and worked with the Teague Brick Company to manufacture and distribute them
around Texas, New Orleans, and Detroit. In the 1960s, he became more involved in design
for aging, including nursing homes, and served as chairman of the Austin Adult Services
Council. His design for the Westminister [or Westminster] Manor retirement home was
hailed as “a whole new look in retirement living” by 7The Austin American.

A historic preservation advocate, Wukasch was deeply committed to the Travis County
Historical Commission. He and Raymond McClure planned Waterloo Park in 1975, a
project that included moving the historic Hardeman House into the park and restoring it.
Wukasch also planned Symphony Square in the 1970s, including the adaptive reuse of the
Jeremiah Hamilton Building as a concert venue. Wukasch led the restoration of the Hannig
Building (206 E. 6t Street), Daniel H. Caswell House (1404 West Avenue), and Morley
Building (209 E. 6t Street) and advocated for the preservation of the Nueces County
Courthouse.

Wukasch was married twice, first to Doris Stork and later to Anita Brewer Howard. He
died in Austin in 2001.
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}’I'incé of Peace Lutheran C]ﬁ‘ﬁ;ch (1955) o
Photos: Jason John Paul Haskins, via Flickr

Windsor Park Presbyterian Church (1960)
Photos: Jason John Paul Haskins, via Flickr

Immanuel Lutheran Ch c, Giddings (1960-61)
Photos: Jeremy Clifton, lonestarbackroads.com

Gethsemane Lutheran Church (ca. 1963)
Photos: Jason John Paul Haskins, via Flickr



Westminster Manor
Photos’ Google Street View

Fire Station No. 18 (1961)



Historical Church Styies Get Contemporary Look

The Austin American (1914-1973
ProQuest Historical Newspapers:

ig Dl

; Jul 26, 1959,
The Austin American Statesman

Anstin architect ne Wukasch's skelch of the in:
terior af the and nave of the pr

"'Hfsufai"ifcal Church Styles
Get Contemporary Look

Historical styles of chureh ar-
chitecture take on a contemporary
Jook in the proposed new Imman-
uel Lutheran Church of Giddings
designed hy Austin .m'htlml Fu-
gene Wakasch,

In designing the proposed $200,-
000 church, Wukasch thoughtiully
teanslated warm traditionad forms
of the past==such as a church tow-
er and spive—into  contemporary
idiom,

The 80-foot fower of the new
chureh is a good example of the
mergence of historical forms and
contemporary  design  used
throughout the sanctuary and [el-
towship hall. To be constructed of
such maodern day malterinls  as
aluminum and porcelain enamel,
the *““traditional” spire will be sct
between two massive brick towers
connected by an ornamented alu-
minum screen,

Another example of historical
style blended with modern design
is found in the sanctuary where a
conemporary cross against a nat.
ural finish brick wall dominates
the  chancel,  Surrounding  the
white plaster cross, which has a
chalice design superimposed upon
it, are plastic chips which will re-

! he taken on the
yship hall und sanctu:

fleet light from a skylight over-
hend,

Tile mosaies of the same cross
design arve set into a large trinn.
qular panel ‘on the front of the
churely,  integrating  the  theme
inside and out,

In explaining his use of the old
with the new in chureh architec-
lure, Wukasch points to  famed
architeet and engineer Pietro Bel-
lusehi who once wrote of chureh
art and architecture: "It has bes
come increasingly apparent that
even the conservitive people are
heginning to doubt the wisdom of
blindly eopying  the historical
styles, But frecing ourselves from
the bonds of historical styles does
not mean rejecting all past expe-
rience, The thoughtful architect
will appraise the spirit  which
maoves other ages, so that he may
himself recaplure such spirit, not
by imitating but by truly under-
standing it, which means sceing
the thousand ties which bond -
chitecture to its own age.”

Belluschi also states that mod.
ern communitics have neither the
time nor the wealth to construct
churches compirable to  those
built in the middle ages when life

1!
w
is

revolved around the religious insti-|
futions, “However," he says, “1f.
we cannot ereet greal monuments. |
we may endeavor to create small
temples, in a more human scale,
designed in o sensitive and ceye-
ative manner so as to produce the
kind of axmn\'plwrn most rr)mhv
cive to worship.”

The new Giddings  church \\|l|‘

('mmsl nl A sanefuary with min-,
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ster's study and chureh n!fir'o tlw huilding committee, Scc'rr-lary
md - n fellowship  hall - housing jof the commiltee is Charles Kos-
Jitehen Tacilities, private dining Jan, and other members are Harry
vooms and specinl storage, iMersiovsky, Osear  Beisert and
The Itev. Max Studtmann is pas- G, . Vahrenkamp, all of Gid-
S of Timmaenuel Lutheran Chureh, | dings, Bids will be taken on tha
mil Augu /nch 1'\ ch.nrm.ln of |hu|ldmg Aux.. 5
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MESSIAH LUTHERAN

The Austin American (1914-1973); Jun 9, 1957,

ProQuest Historical Newspapers: The Austin American Statesman

pg. D12 I

"MESSIAH LUTHERAN ~— Construction of a new $50,- 11 am. service. Designed by Eugene Wukasch, AlA,

000 chapel and Sunday school unit for Messiah Lu- the new building makes provision for aver 200 per= :
sons in the main nave, and wil include seven class. i

theran Church, 5600 Cameron Road, will begin after rooms, a study, and a kitchen. A. C. Warner Con-
official groundbreaking ceremonies Sunday after the struction Company has the general contract.

R;produced wit’h’permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permissi"on.
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CHURCH OPENING TODAY

The Austin American (1914-1973); Mar 16, 1958
ProQuest Historical Newspapers: The Austin American Statesman
pg. B7

Formal opening ceremonies
for the first unit of the new
8t. Mark’s Methodist Chuveh
will he held Sunday at 3 p. m.
Speaker will be Dr. Edmund
‘Heinsohnn of  the  Universily
Methodist  Church.

* ‘The church is on a [iveacre
site two miles north of Austin
belween the Old Dallas Migh-
way and Interregional Highway

“CHURCH

|

.

at Tedlord and Braker Lanes.
The land wus purchased for
the new church by the Austin
Methodist City Mission Board.

The bick venner building,
costing  approximadely $25,000
will serve as o temporary sanc-
tuary and educationnl  unit,
Eventually it will be converted
into clussrooms for the chil-
dren’s division under the
church's eampus style master

OPE

e 1. 1
NING TODA

plan. At present it contains the
pastor's study, o nursery-kin-
dergarien, and s worship area
that divides into three class-
TOOMS.

The opening ceremonies Sune
day will be followed by an
open: house, The pastor, the
Rov. John B. Berkley, and con-
gregation invile the public to
attend the opening service,

St. Mark's was officially con-

3

stituted on Sept. 23, 1956, with
% charter members. Ground
was broken for the first build-
ing in October 1957,

The architcet was Eugene
Wukasch, with Ray Wimberly
as gencral contractor, Members
Lof the building commitiee were
Lawrence €, Reid, chairman,
Howard M. Peterson, and J. B.
Taylor Jr. Mrs, Harry Hall is
chatrman of the official board.

Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permission.
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Church by Wukasch Wins E\hlblt Honor
The Austin American (1914-197. :
ProQuest Historical Newspapers
pg. B12

l]u Austin American Statesman

Interior scene depicls contemporary tional ecclesiastical  corapetition  in

lines of ¥rince of Peace Lutheran St. Louis. Fugene Wukasch, AIA,
Church, which was awarded an Austin architecl, designed the struce

honorable mention in the recent na- fure.

Church Vfby Wukasch
Wins Exhibit Honor

One of Austin's recently cone ) Department of Church Buailding,
structed chuvehes, Prince of Prac JM wis held sinmliancously with
Latheran  Chureh  vrocted  last ! ithe St Lows Art Exposilion.

: The Guild is a nonprofit or
spring at 1635 Rast Live Oakioanization of acchitects drawn

Stieet, was awarded an hanorable| from all over the country, whose
mention at ihe Annual Nutionaliinferest lics in raising the stand-
Joint Conlerence on Church Ar-lards of church architecture. s
chitectura held in 8t. Louis. members  comprise the leading
This conference is sponsored:church architeels in America to-
jointly by the Church Avchitec|day.
tural Guild of America and the! The qu{mont of Chmch‘
INational Council of Churches i Building is made up of executives |
'()f a0 Protestant and  Eastern
1 Orthodox denominations that con-
sstitute the National Council. These
{men guide the destinics of much
r\f the church building being donc
this country. i
E 'Ihe stracture, designed by Fu-|
Jgene Wukasch, Anstin architect,
in l\wpmr* with  the (onto’v-[
mt avy trend away from pseudo-
‘hx\ ovical sfyles, No awards have
‘been made for avical designs
for the past three yoars in this
,mmpfrhhem
| The Prince of Peace Church
fwas organized in the spring of
11854, and sinee that time has been
lserved by the Rev. David Frans
Lavson. It is affiliated with the
gusiana Lutheran Church and
tht‘ National Lutheran Council,
—

Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permission.



Presbyterians Push Drive To Construct New Church
The Austin American (1914-1973); Jun 14, 1959,
ProQuest Historical Newspapers: The Austin American Statesman

pg. C12
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Windsor Park Presbyteria

gt

ns are beginning a campaign
to build a church building at 5800 Westminster Drive.

Piclured here is architect Bugene Wukasch’s sketeh of

the proposed first unit,  The congregation now wor-
ships al Harvris Elementary School.

Presbyterians Push Drive
To Construct New Church

Windsor Park Presbyterians will
Inunch their building fund drive
Monday, with Campaign Sunday
planmed for June 21, G, R, Buay.
nunt of the Nationa] Board of Mis-
sions is campaign director, A mass
meeting of members and [riends
of the church will be held Tues.
day at 7:30 p.m., at Harris Ele.
mentary School,

Constituted and organized into a
fully established church on Sept.
22, 1957, the Windsor Park Presby-
terian Church is the result of a
new chureh extension program of
the United Presbyterian Church,
USA, which has for one of its mu-
jor goals the establishment of 100
new churches a year for the next
five yenrs, R

The foursacre site at 5300 West.
minter Drive, south of the Harris
Elementary School, on which the
first unit of the new church build
ing will be erected, was selected
by the Presbytery of Austin,
through jts church extension com.
mitiee for Austin led by the Rev,

Fred E. Brooks, in cooperation
with the jolnt conunitice on church
extension of all  Presbyterian
churches in Austin. The congrepa.
tion 1§ lemporarily meeling at the
Havris Schoot Tor worship services,
with other church activities center-

ing at the “housc church,” 2403 | s

Wheless Lane,

The Rev, H. Peyton Waddill, or.
ganizing minister, who began work
in the Windsor Tark area on Feb.
1, 1857, was installed as fivst pas-
tor of the church on June 29, 1938,
The congregation consists at the
present time of 139 members, with
more than 100 children altending
the Sunday School sessions,

Heading the building program
is Dr. John W. Slone, general
chairman, with Roy R. Arrington
and Thomnas W, Munrec Jv., serv-
ing as chalrman and co-chairman,
vespectively, The building commit-
tee, which"has been working with
Architect Eugene Wukasch on the
plans for the building, consists of
Eugene M, Phillips, chairman, J.

R. Adamson, Don R. Hayes, S
Roy Johnson and T. W. Rluntee
Jr,, J. R, Adamson heads the fi.
nance commitiee, with comniitiee
members Roy R, Arringlon, L
Vernon  Cook, Mrs. Darvdanella
Hicks and Mrs. M, L. Hutchings
3

Preparing for the week's camy
paign activities, William L. Spie.
gel Jr,, heads the preparation conmy
mittee; Mvs. M. L, Hutchings Sr.,
promotion; Robert B. Holmes, per
sonnel; captain and Mrs, 1. C
Lucas, arcangement; J, R. Adam.
son, finance; Mr. and Mrs. Louis
. Dehioll, office; and Miss Max
ine Bryan, building fund treasue
er, the follow-up committee.

Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permission.



New Church Is Example Of Dynamic Architecture
The Austin American (1914-1973); Jan 15, 1961;

ProQuest Historical Newspapers:
pg. B9

The Austin American Statesman

which was completed this fall is
an example of bold, contempo-

rary church architecture. ing room.

worked toward an uncompromis-
ingly forceful and stimulating ar-
chitecture,

“Our purpose,” he said, “was
to let young and old alike know,
visually, tangibly and immediate-
1v that the church itself Is an alive,
dynamic organism.

“The church building relates to
the church program. The building
is contemporary because today’s
church program Is contempo-
rary.”’ i

The church is built ot rough
ficldstone with a steep rtoof of
asphalt shingles pitched 10 a
height of 35 feet over the sanctu-
ary. Across the top ridge of the
roof is a long, narrow skylight,
Numinated at night.

H. Peyton Waddill, minister,
and the building committee formu-
lated the program requirements
before the design work began,
This resulted in a request for a
strong emphasis on the chancel as
the center of worship.

Accordingly, the church is a
study in contrast serving fo em-
phasize the central worship area,
The north end of the building,
where the chancel is located, is in-
folded in a large window of do-
mestic cathedral glass, Here the
root is high. In contrast, the roof
is low and flat over the narthex,
office, minister's study and edu-
cation wing.

The 6,600 square foot project
cost approximately $80,000 and is
the first unit of & master plan, The
{ ultimate plan ealls for a larger
¢ sanctuary and fellowshlp hall to
{  be built on the four - acre site.

Of Dynamic Architecture

New Windsor Park Presbyterian| The present construction also]
Church, 5800 Westminster Drive,| contains a kitchen and rest rooms. |
N The space under the choir balcon,y‘
serves two purposes, for overflow|
seating and as an auxiliary meet- {used for small church school

education wing, Eight feet wide,
the corridor features built in seats
between fieldstone plers along the
window wall. This seating may be

Americ atesman /UPT

INTERIOR VIEW SHOWS COMMUNION TABLE AS CENTER OF WORSHIP
Windsor Park Presbyterian Church finished in stone and beams.

New Church Is Example

rd with a pass through to
hen from the courtyard,

Eugene M., Phillips is chairman
of the building committee. Gen-
eral contractor on the job was
Raymond Wimberley.

classes and informal visiting be-!

Architect and engineer Eugene| Another example of muitiple use |tween services. ¥
Wukasch said he and the church| of space is found in the main cor- |
‘building committee  deliberately| Tidor linking the narthex with the'ing rooms open onto a centr:

The education wing and meet:

Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permission.
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Church Design: a New Face

Prud’homme, Marilyn

The Austin American (1914-1973); May 28, 1961,

ProQuest Historical Newspapers: The Austin American Statesman
pe El

Many Austin

Congregations Are

Turning to Contemporary
Architecture for their

New Church Buildings as
They Discover '« Modern
" Richness of Symbolism
"Plus an Econemy of
Construction

By MARILYN PRUD’HOMME

“First, the Presbylenam say they would

net mind joining up with the Episcopa- -

lians, and fthen the Methodists say ‘all
mght, it might be a good idea, and now
they're all choosing sides to see who can
tuild the welrdest church house. I just
don't understand it.””

Austinites are commg more and more
not only to understand these non-period
churches but to accept tlhiein., -

“'The word for them is simply 'contem-
porary’,” says architect Fugens Wukasch.
“The new modern churches have mno set
names,

“After all,” he says, '‘Gothic cathedrals
in thcir day and time were contemporsaiy,
0.

Wukasch who has designed many

churches throughout the state says there
are two dominant things the architect must
mindfal of in designing churches: there
t be ro questzon that the. buildin
represents a church fo society. In that re-
spect, the church must be historic. ‘And-the
public mwst be able.to find the entrance
way,

Planning a new huﬂd ng usually tollows
the same pattern,” A" building committee
from the congregation, the clergy and
teachers and the architect must meet to-
gether. The building must house and ve-
flect the type of program the particular
church is carrying on now and anticipates
in the fututre,

“Most of my congregation thought they'd
prefer an Early American steucture,” says
Archie K, szevenson. pastor of Hyde Park
Chn:uan Church, “We compared costs.
] q buﬂmﬂg adequate to

Tor the same amouﬂt of floor space it
would have cost us [rom 20 fo 50 per cont
above our new building's ¢
built an Early American church,

he says.
Qur rustic contemporary building has
allowed us to increase our educational and
{ellowship facilities. In a contemporary
design, the architect can create a sanctu-
ary that is churchly and has psychological-
ly the right aimssphe"e '* Stevenson says.
“We're real happ.v with our building and
want to tell people about it.”

Windsor Park Presbyterian Church's
comimittee went through a similar process
to create their building at 5800 Westmins-
ter Prive,

My congreganon is made up mostly of
young people,” the Rev. Peyton Waddill,
pastor of Windsor Park Presbyterian, ex-
plains.

“We had a brainstorming session to find
out what owr people thought a church
should look like, We rezlized that our
opinions on how a church should look
were based on how the churches we went
to as children in other cities looked, We
favored a colonial buliding at first.”

Waddili says that the committee worked
inside out, figured cosls and thought of
Lhe church’s program.

“Our .contemporary building looked dras-
tic at first,” he says. “We have a slanted
sfeep roof and a divided gable to give

if we bad .

Slanhng roof form.

@

the illusion that glass windows stick up
through the roof to form the skylight. Now
the colonial rather tha‘l the contemporary
appesys cold to us,'

The church building itsel? must ieach.
Dr. Martin L& Marty of The Christian
Century magazine writes: *'To regard one's
own age #5 ihe consummmation of all time
is alway The big
in church building in the 19th and early
20th centuries was geared toward invoking
forms of the past. Despite present needs,
they evected buildings that were revivals,
adaptations and modification of what was
Byzantine, Gothic or Georgian. No longer
could eccleastical architectura teach, It did
not even learn. It vepeated.”

“Today,” he writes, “architects and

amatxc divided gable at Windsor Park Pleqbytenah Church.

churchmen are learning to use the past
without escaping into it."

This retention without repetition of the
past is evident here in Austin al the newly
constructed First Presbyterian Church on
Jackson Avenue. The magnificent stained-
glass windows from the old church at Sev-
entl and Lavaca have been integrated into
the new chapel along with some of the
original stones from the old building.

The bright newness in church architec-
ture isn't confined to Profestant denoui-
nations. The Roman Catholic churches in
Europe were some of the first to delve into
and to accept wutempwmy architecture,

Cardinal Lecare in “Ten Years of Sacred
Architecture in Italy” gives this view:
“The artist who creates the chureh must

deeply esemplify the idea of liturgic wor-
ship and must experience and assimilate
its soul: then it will be easy and almost
spontanecus for him to bring to the men
of his time in their own language the
echo of the Divine Word.

“It is necessary that the Catholic com-
munity realize the true sense of tradition
which is not a crystalized form of a spe-
o peried of history. God is God of the
iving and not of the dead.”

In the same volume, Quaroni aptly
sums up the renewed interest in sacred
architecture: “The time has come to see
together all the functions which expréss
the aspecis of human life, because between
them is interdependence in which spiritual-
ity is a binding element.””

Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permission.
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Architect Desigmd
Clay Solar Sereens

“ Rt Awstin archulec! agens epe altraclive desizn whenj
vich designs a building and froecred ae well as provide
doe Hke the muterials avabb-dsiveng'h a0 ranning hood  insteard )
ahle, he is Hkely to design ]nsmf the wonker sinek bhond used:
twith elay undis then available,
vawvds the case wil Wulisch i Todav, ilie clay  solar sereen
anct clay  salar gereens, a sunftile dosigned by Wakaseh  anrd
control dovice being used  ex-|produced by the 'F.ap;m' Prick
tensively  doday theoush the | Company Tias heen usod i schools |
rountry on apartments, clsirehes, fand churehes over I'exas, & rom- |
cotmmereial bulidings and homes. imeveind bailding in New Orlesns
Only a lew 5 azo, thwse bind on bage melels in the De- |
mnsaney S0l Sereens were heing | l;ull ML Aren.
made of standard o T"v hrick ecompany  announesd
and  pipe eut in sh ko fwe wide of what 45 1o
with na Hle units produced speet Hheir knowledge the nation's larg-
fieally for solar seveoms, Whileinel order o salae sereen djle
Wuknsch felt that the ooy solar jevor phiced, The Wikasch desian-
seepon offered ideal sun comtrol, lod ifle will he used en o fauy
he believed the masonry mater story mulib-unit apaetient byitd-
wwilabie left samething o he H‘-|srrr in Arg Arhor, Mich,
sired In appeavanee and proper ! Wiakasch had oceasion to speci-
o {strengii when erected, b his own fite design recenily
Fhen Wukasch  designed  the when he designed renweleling of
Messiuh  Lutheran  Church, 570 the Sun Juen Lathersn Church,
Cameron Road, in the sumimer 2704 Fast Sccond Strect, Here the
af T37 ke planmod a masoney oy cselar sereen iz used  in
solay sereen for fhe feonl andifrond of the enbance, providing an
rear af e sanctuaiy, bad sugshterestmg oxtepior feahwee {oe
| ogesteed fhe mea of the chureh o simple \“*v reh builkling A% well
niake thdr cwn concrete blocks s sun eonbol
Jor theie chineeh Witkaseh savs with
Witknseh was Jorerd o wivey T dry
s atanddaad chimney bBlock cul el ix o
i approprinte fenpths for drivlay splur s
ferecns  en o fhe 8L Andrew

Al

e
'O
L
T
U1

oxien-
VoS enn-
Wilert avdd a
cen s almosd

tdeal way fo xefve H, Aainienanee
Preshytevinn Chtrch in Abilern ifree and cermomical, the musonry
tand a solir sereen of clav wsereen keons fhe sun ansd still
on the Walmnt 1T Lutheran uliows the desired visibility.
Chyreh in Dallas. Shee Wukaneh wiarted wark

Asked by & representigive of with the Teapmie Drick Company
he Tengus Peick Company of on his tile design in 1937, severn
Teague, Toxws, why he didn'Unther clay fils units as weil as
gpecify  more W'N\m'v asolar leonerele hlnck  ond lprmr-mm
sereens,  Wigkaseh on cxignoel specifioatly
wan exasporalod with whit snl O RETeens h;wo br ‘on p‘nr\r! O
considosed makeshifl materials, the  markel, Wik s desian
He convineard the fivick compony Heatures @ contimious, Fepiitiie
wre was o oeed {or a musomey lebrele, with ane e unit only o
ile signed especially  forisegmont of an atiractive. over
o oinosalar sereens, patiern, TU s faid ke
. Wokaseh do wirength Hiroued
the brick  con ANt HTEa TP

i tibe uniy o
niowordd

Eugene Wukasch, Austin  architect, At Amerie
right, and 1 H

for use in solur screens. Tt
Brick Company produced the
kusch designed tile units.
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New Construction

Technique in Use

By MARJ WIGHTMAN
A posttensioning of concrete
beams perfected by German engi-
neers to save steel during World
War II is the key support techni-

This first section of the church
building will be etpandable into

a much larger structure as the
congregation

grows, Wukasch

que used in the new Gethsemane said. Later in the master plan for
Lutheran Church now under con- development of the new church
struction at Anderson Lane and property, new wings will be add-
Purnell Road. ed on each side of the central

New to Austin, this revolution.|structure, Future plans for the
ary method of putting steel tenon|church also call for educational
support into masses of concrete|and administrative buildings and
was first used in Texas on the an outdoor amphitheater suitablel
Corpus Christi Bay Bridge and for sunrise services.

American-Statesman/UPL

TWIN POST-TENSIONED CONCRETE BEAMS, SUPPORT GETHSEMANE LUTHERAN CHURCH ROOF
New techniques perfected in Europe and now used in Texas bridges comes to Austin.

1

expressway bridge work in Hous.| Wukasch, who spotted many ex-

ton.

“Gethsemane Lutheran is the
first big project to use post-ten-
gloning  In  Austin and we're
pleased with the way it's going,"
Eugene Wukasch, local architect
with a statewide reputation in
church design, said.

Dedication ceremonies for the
new bullding for Austin's oldest
Lutheran congregation are set for
Nov. 19, The original church erect-
ed by Swedish Lutherans in the
area was located at Congress
and 16th Street,

amples of post-tensioning in con-
Europe this summer, is enthusiag-
tic about the process.

“The beams we've used are 95
feet long—rnuch too long to carry
down the highway,” the architect
points out. “With the post-tension-
ing process, we could put the steel
supports inside right bhere--and
then tighten the whole thing with
jacks once the concrete had
cured.”

Two post-tensioned beams in the
new church building carry the en-
tire roof load.

Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permission.
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Downtown

ENTRANCE TO A-BUILDINGC DOWNTOWN PARK
" Resteasy site offered harried workers, others

<« dfromPagel) d. to keep bulld
emphasizing them. A trail may away from all trees. As a
point directly at a particviarly result, only threc trecs

beautiful tree. for instance
then wveer off to give an
exceptional view of the creek.

“Walking within a city park
in a central ‘urban setting Is
nat simply moving from ong
place "to onother,” noted

Eugene Wukasch In a critique’

of park plans, “There should
‘be reasons for the meandering
forms of pathways and
of benches in
relationship fo vistas, shade,
contrasts, tactife experiences
and strategic plant details,”

For people who like to
‘observe nalure in a more
© formal  setting. o brick
fp “‘concourse.” a serjes of

descending  platforms lined
. with planter boxes of azaleas
and crepe myrile, and dotled
with  benches. is planned
- between the 33th  Street
entrance and the secondary
enlrance at 12th Street,

Austinites who long ago fell
in love with the old concrele
arch bridges across Waller
Creek, Bt figured that when
construction  began in  the
area. they were due to fall,
have a pleasant surprise in
slore. The bridges will remain
~'as intégral parts of the park
for such ecvents as conccrls.
The other. where 12th Street
crosses the park, will he
planted with Jois of greenery
and will still function as 2
bridge.

The utilization of the bridges
points up another guiding
philosophy in the planning of
the park. Architects realized
that most of what was there
was already beawtiful, So they
are saving as much as
possible and changing as little
as possible.

Strict instructions had 1o be
ijssued 1o contraclors, . Lurle

(including one century plant
which construction crews did
manage (o bulldoze under)
have been fost, other than
dead ones, McClure said.

The same concept, of using
the old and the already there,
was used throughout. There a
house once stood on a hillside
with garage underneath, the
piltars and -gates of the
garage. the steps  and
platforms, have been left as
the nucleus of an unstructured
playground. The wisteria and
jasmine planted around the
site of the house have also
survived.

At anather site in the park,
the grape arbor built by a
former creckside dweiler has
heen preserved, and will be
“refurnished” with new posts
and latticework to hold up the
vines, Flowering plum and
peach trees, among the more
than 160 additional trees 1o be
added in the park. will also
lend their color to the arbar,

Even the new  brick
concourse will partake of the
old. 3t is being built Jargely
with old brick, safvaged from
Austin homes, The two pillars
which mark the entrance to
the concourse are lopped with
gatepost  ornaments  also
salvaged from old homes. and
the Jampposts which help light
the park will be the ornale
stone and metal ones saved
{rom other parts of tawn.

Still. the faces of the park
are nol exhausted: an old
cistern will became the center
of a new jasmine-covered
gazeho, Thiree dams in the
creck — two of them built fn a
style approaching that of carly
Texas ‘settlers —~ will create
ponds along the creek deep
enough for fish lolive fn,

park progressihg

The hike and bike trall does
niot_tamely follow the top-of
the creek bank everywhere,
but for much of the length of
the park, descends to the
actual lmestone creek bed
beside the water. Where the
trail crosses under the Mth
Street bridge, @ tunnel is being
constructed to let hikers and
bikers continue along the
bottom of the creek without
mounting the bank, And ane
whole area of the park will be
planted in biucbonnets and
Indian paintbrush.

Parking for Brackenridge

Hospltal will he located just .

across the new Red River
[rom the park, and several
foothridges will provide access
to the main park area from
the Red River side of the
creck, Hospital and park
planners  hope to more
convenlently connect the two
areas in the future, to allow
hosplital patients  and  their
visitors to enjoy the park,

“We did a Jot of hings
because we enfoyed them,"
architect McClure said. *We
made some decisions, like
where to put tables and
benches, on the basls of whol
felt good, or what looked like
fun, When we were laying out
the master plan. our office
was right here on the creek,
and sometimes we would come
and sit out under g tree or
along the creek, 1o see what
weenjoyed most.”

I hat
personal involvement with the
park, ft is the same kind of
interest that so many people

seems o ratber |

are taking in the project. Une

man, hearing of the park,
called up to deseribe a type of
steps he had sut on and
enjoyed whife in Europe, Sure
enough, planners found some
sleps of the type and included
them inthe park.

Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permission
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Historic house defies mover

The Austin American Statesman (1973-1987); Aug 22, 1976;

ProQuest Historical Newspapers: The Austin American Statesman
g. Bl

Staff Photo hy Lacey Murphy
THE MOVING OF THE MILLION.POUND HARDEMAN HOUSE WAS DELAYED SATURDAY BY A BROKEN AXLE
Workers plan to make adjustments so the building can be moved from its present focation at 16th and Trinity to Symphony Square next weekend

Historic house defies mover

Sometimes even the hesl of plans fail, or

atleast are delayed,

Such was the case Saturday when
house-mover Jack Logan of San Angelo
ried to move the Hardeman House {rom
its present location at 16th and Trinity to
1101 Red River in Symphony Square. -

‘Problems developed when the house,

constructed of Texas limestone® and
weighing 1 million pounds, was not per-
fectly balanced on the 50-wheeled moving
vehicle. After moving the house about 15

feet, an axle broke, according to Eugene
Wukaseh, an architect and engineer on
the project,

But there's still hope.

Workmen were adjusting the position of
the house on the beams and tires and
more tires were being brought from San
Angelo, A replay of the move is scheduled

- for 8 a.m. next Saturday.

The 1860°s structure is early Texas clas-
sic architecture, according to Wukasch,
complete with 18-inch walls and Corinthi-

an columns, Restoration is expécted to be
completed by the spring of 1977, when it
will be leased as a restaurant.

The house is named for one-time resi-
dent William P. Hardeman, who was ac-
tive in the Texas Revolution, the Mexican
and Civll wars, He wa$ also an Indian
fighter with Erastus (Deaf) Smith,

Hardeman served in varjous public off-
ices including inspecfor and superintend-
ent of railroads and superintendent of
public buildings and grounds. -

Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permission.
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What went up is coming down

01d facade reveals itself behind slats of ’30s modernization
By DAVID FRINK '

Amerlcan-Statesman Statf

BY DAVID FRINK
American Statesman StaH

ameongmitestomet ‘The original face of ane of downlown Austin's
wogeneratons, reentywas ] 051 batlldings, hidden behind a stucco mask for
u.i.‘.":;d“.,‘l.‘zir“::%:‘fﬁ:;’n‘?“ i two generations, recently was uncovered virtually

206 Enst Sixth Street since th m
40s, the facade of the more tha unscarred.
Ing will need only a small am

e yeamacionenks  Afler a day-long operation to remove the shell
iresm s wan that had covered the Hannlg Bullding at 204 and

beireremen tr a e 206 East Slxth Street since the Inte 18305 or early
B mognocome 408, the facade of the more than century-old build-

1 Lanioork ommlelens {1 o' will] need only a small amount of restoratlon.
asane st masnenisor. 188 Victarian-style stonework was found totally in-

ko survlvor of tha Alnmo mas

mony olthe send Texane ot {208, Sald Bugene Wukasch of Wukaseh & Assocl-
rounding th lncidon. ales, the lacal archltects leading restoration of the
sﬁé’fa’.“:él“r’;?:“.ﬁm‘ﬁﬁn“é three-story structure which most recently housed

from Hannig’

e i s o the Gage New and Used Furniture Store.

Eroup of local businessm

Rl Deing restored for a number of retail uses by
aipenersionptenioe 10¢a] businessman Wesley Embry, the Hannig
{enanis or e henans weor. UM INgG 15 thought to date back to the late 18605 or

finished Inside, along with T

wiee. There aiso witsesome 1870, Landmark Commlission members sald,

lease.

It was built by Joseph Hannlg who was boest
known as one of Texas' finest cabinel makers and
2s one of several husbands of Suzanna Bickinson,
the survivor of the Alamo massacre who identified
many of lhe dead Texans of the battle and whose
deposition is the basis for most of the history sur-
rnundlng the incident.

Thc Morley Drug Store occupied the building for

“ several years in the tate 1800s, It was ‘purchased

from Hannig's family by Car! Belisch in 1909 and

his heirs held it until 1975, when it was sold to a

group of local businessmen which includes John

Wooley, Stephen Furr, J. Murray Bowden, Wil-
liam Choate and Gary Bradley.

It is under a long-term lease to Embry, owner of
the Baker's Dozen shops in Highland and Deobie
Maills. Wukasch sald a cafe and bakery will be the
{enants of the building when restoration work is
finlshed inside, along with Terry's Typlng Ser-

* viece. There also will be some space available for
lcase.

‘Carson chips away at old Gage storefrant attached In late 1930s to discover facade

Carsnn usas ‘chery plcksr on Gego Bullding |hrse sturles over 61h and Brazos Streats

o % - v e

Austm American Statesman, 6/7/ 197 8.
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Doris Lucille Wukasch (nee Stork) was born in 1924 in Somerville, Texas. She attended
Austin High School and the University of Texas. After graduation, she worked as a
laboratory technician at the Texas State Department of Health. She married Eugene
Wukasch in 1945 and moved to Corpus Christi, where he was stationed. Between 1954 and
1966, she worked as executive secretary for Wukasch Architects and Engineers. She and
Eugene Wukasch had four children; their marriage was dissolved in 1971.

Doris earned a Master of Education from UT in 1969 and taught math in the Austin
Independent School District between 1970 and 1985, then taught in Papua New Guinea for
a year in 1986 with Wycliffe Bible Translators. Doris Wukasch died in 2005.
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Doris .S“torll'(, |
J. E. Wukasch
Are Married

Rev. Roesener Reads
Double Ring Rites
Joining UT Exes

Miss Doris Lucille Stork and Joe
Eugene Wukasch, ART 3 ol
USNR, were married by the Rev
F. G. Roesener in a double ring
ceremony Saturday at 8:30 p. m. at
Si. Martin's Lutheran church.

Miss Stork is the daughier of
Mrs. Edwin W. Stork and the late
Dr, Stork of 3123 Hemphill park,
and Mr. Wukasch is the son of
Mr. and Mrs. Joe A. Wukasch of
1101 West 22 1-2 sireet.

The Rev. Roesener read the vows
before the palm banked altar dec-
'grated with baskeis of white car-
‘nation and peonies and candelabra
of white . tapers. Miss - Virginia
‘Dare sang the bridal solo, “The
Lord’s Prayer,” accompanied by
Miss Lois Zabel who also played
“Evening Prayer” by Humperdinck,
“Poem"™ by Fibich, *“Liebestraum"”
by Liszt, “Lullaby" by Godard,
"“Lraumerei,” and the traditional
wedding marches.

The bride, given in marriage by
her brother-in-law, DeWilt W. Cox,
Jr.,, wore a satin-backed. crepe
gown with fitted bodice, round
marquiselte yoke, full skirt {fall-
ing in brief train, -long pointed
sleaves, Her headdress, pearlized
clusters of orange blossoms, caught
a finger-tip veil of bridal illusion.
She carried a white orchid on a
white Bible and wore a ftriple
strand of pearls belonging to the

hridesronm's mnthar

Mrs. DeWitt Cox Jr., the bride's
sister, and Miss Ruth Elizabeth
Weber of Bellville, atiended the
bride as matron of honor and
bridesmaid, '

Fach wore a pale net gown over
satin designed with fitted bodice,
sweetheart neckline, and full
skirt, and pearl comb hair orna-
ments, gifts of the bride. Mrs. Cox
wore pale blue and carried pink
carnations with blue delphinium;
Miss Weber wore pale pink and
carried blue delphinium with pink
carnations.

Ens. Earl O, Wukasch, only broth-
er of the bridegroom, now station-
ed in Charleston, R. I, atiended as
best man, ART l-¢ Edwin Scha-
rath, home from the Pacific, ART
3-¢c Tommy Anderson, and S 1-c
Charles Price, both stationed in
Corpus Christi, wushered. The
bridegroom's attendants are all
from Austin,

The wedding reception followed
the ceremony at the home of the
bride with the mother of the bride,
the parents of the bridegroom, and
members of the bridal party in the
receiving line. White spring flow-
ers and fern decorated the home,;
The cake, two hearis joined to-
gether and covered with tiny white
and yellow roses, was on the {able
which was centered with a low
bow] of mixed white flowers snd
fern on a cutwork cloth,”

IMiss Weber presided over the
bride’s book; Mrs. Woodrow Rische
poured the punch; and Mrs. Cox
served the cake.

The bride's mother wore a triple
sheer navy dress with a black
straw hat and black patent acces-
sories with a corsage of gardeniss.
The bridegroom’s mother wore
brown with a brown straw hat and
brown accegsories with a gardenia
corsage. :

Leaving for the short week-end
trip to San Antonio, the bride wore
a two piece suit of sky blue crepe,
a black straw Vera Whistler origi-
nal hat, white gloves, and black

patent accessories. The'couple will




be at home at 320 Clifford street in
Corpus Christi, .

Mrs. Wukasch was graduated
from Ausiin high school in 1041
with top honors and from the Uni-
versity of Texas in 1944 with high
honors. While in the university,
she was a member of Alpha Lamb-
da Delta, Tau Delta Alpha, Iota
Sigma Pi, and Phi Beta Kappa. For
the past six months she has been
employed as a laboratory techni-
cian at the Texas state department
of health.

Wukasch, now stationed at Ward
Island, Corpus Christi, is a gradu-
ate of Austin high school and the
University of Texas with a bache-
lor of science degree in architee-
tural engineering in 1943. He was
a charter member of the Austin
Symphony orchestra, and an aclive
member of Gamma Della, Ameri-
can Society of Civil Engineers, As-
sociation of Studeni Architeets,
Walther League, and St Pauls
Lutheran church. Afier gradua-
tion he was employed by Lockheed
Aircraft corporation as an engi-
neering draftsman until his en-
trance into the armed forces in
May. 1044,

QOut-of-town guests for the wed-

ding were as follows: Mr. and Mrs.
DeWitt Cox Jr., of Galveston, Mra.
F. W. Dallmeyer of Burton, Mrs.
W. J. Stork and Wally of Houston,
Mr. and Mms. DeWitt Cox Sr., of
New Caney, Mr. and Mrs. Charles
Parke of Somerville, Mr. and Mrs.
Robert Gatling, Miss Ruth Eliza-
beth Weber and Mrs. Elvis Sim-
mons of Somerville.

D.13-26
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Bride in Saturday Rites |

Miss Doris
Lucille Stork,
daughter of
Mrs. Edwin W.

- Stork
and the late
Dr. Stork of
3123 Hemphill
park, became
the bride
Saturday of
Joe Eugene
‘Wukasch,
ART 3-c of
the USNR,
son of
Mr. and Mrs.
Joe A.
Wukasch
of 1101 West
22 1-2 street,

Photo by Christinnson-Leberman

Marriage announcement (text and photo), Austin American, 7/5/1945.
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Doris Lucile Stork Wukasch

1924 - 2005

Doris Lucile Stork Wukasch passed peacefully on March 17, after a full and varied
life. She was born in Somerville, Texas, in 1924, to Clara and Dr. Edwin W. Stork,
medical doctor for the Mizzouri Pacific Railroad and staunch defender of human
rights in Burleson County against the Klu Klux Klan. Her father's sudden death at
the age of g (after which the family moved to Austin) was a defining event for her
and her family, as was her life-long desire to serve others, including a secret longing

to serve in foreign mission efforts.

Valedictorian of her Austin High School class of 1941, Doris graduated Summa Cum
Laude and Phi Beta Kappa from the Universitv of Texas (Austin) in 1944, with a BA,
where she was prezident of the women's premedical fraternity Tau Delta Alpha and

a member of [ota Sigma Pi.

Doris worked during World War II as a chemist before and after marryving Eugene
Wukasch on July 7, 1945. While editing the Comet yvearbook at Austin High her
senior vear, Doris had met Gene, whose photographic skills complemented her
journalistic ability. She zerved faithfully as wife and mother, creating the svmbolic
themes that were used to enrich a number of his architectural creations, including
Gethsemane Lutheran Church's chancel wall of glass, which can now be seen from
Highwav 183 North as "a light set on a hill." A number of brochures on relizgious
symbolism in architecture were produced during this time of her life while she was

also active with the Women's Architectural Guild, of which she was president in
1064.

Simultaneously, she mothered four children, in whom she nurtured learning, art
and music. Her steadfast chauffeuring for nineteen vears to tri-weekly music lessons
at the University of Texas-Junior String Project helped foster her children's string
quartet. She alzo loved children's games, singing, and playing the piano, and later

enjoved sharing these with grandchildren.
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As a Barnabas encourager of others, the church always provided a backdrop for
participation, service, and meaning throughout Doris' life, at St. Martin's, Trinity,
and later Lord of Life Lutheran Churches in Austin. She was a Sundav School
teacher and neighborhood,/community pioneer, starting a special education
program at Trinity in the 1960's. As an outgrowth of her faith, German cultural
heritage and sponsoring foreign visitors and university students also were important
to her. Doris always supported the idea of the living church and its flourishing in
house church activities. She was also active in various formal church womens'
groups, later becoming one of the first Stephen Ministers in the Austin Area. In
1005, she was a founding member of Lord of Life Church and was enthusiastic about

her community's building program.

A published poet, Doris loved words, the beauty of the English Language, and
passing the torch of literacy to the next generation. She earned an M.Ed., writing on
"Creativity: The Unknown Force in the Rehabilitation Process"” and became a
certified rehabilitation counselor in 19069. She taught English and special education
within the AISD svstem for many vears at Allen, Lanier, and Crockett High School.
Earlier she found time to volunteer and work at the Austin State School and Mary
Lee School. After her retirement from AISD, her commitment to the preservation of
the word at last culminated in going to Papua New Guinea were she taught English
to the Wycliffe Bible Translators' children. Doris was also an active member of the
Kwill Club and shared her poetry, both published and unpublished, with friends and
family, including her annual Christmas poem. She was also featured in the "World
Who's Who of Women" and granted other related honors.

Her =ister Mae Cox and Eugene Wukasch, to whom she was married for 26 vears,

preceded Doriz in death.

She is survived by her four children and their families, which include six
grandchildren: Dr. Linda Wukasch Thiering and her husband Rev. Dr. Barry
Thiering, and their children Christine and Joshua; Susan Wukasch and her husband
Dr. Gary Richter and their daughter Molly; Jean Wukasch Mihalik and her husband
Col. Richard Mihalik of Wright Patterson AFB, Davton, Ohio, and their children
Julie Mihalik Calfee and her husband John Calfee; and Michael Mihalik, both of Ft.
Worth; and Jonathan Wukasch and his wife Jov Lenoch Wukazch and their son
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Nathan. Esther Knape of Austin also survives her sister's passing.

Memorial services will be held at Lord of Life Lutheran Church, 12400 Amherst
Drive, on Palm Sunday afternoon, March 20 at 2:00, to be followed at the church

with a community celebration of Doris’ life.

Memorial contributions may be made in Doris’ memory to the Junior String Project
of the Universitv of Texas at Austin, which trains voung musicians; Lord of Life

Lutheran Church; Wyeliffe Bible Translators; or the Salvation Army.

Doris Wukasch obituary, Austin American-Statesman, 3/20/2005.

Building Permits and Maps
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'WATER SERVICE PERMIT C No 8634
P Austin, Texas N T
Received of Z// Ot A '"M/ o A P AW r‘/ _ Dgfpsr'"é J7
| .Address.... rpl. (oo LA Ans s p FL.. -
‘ 14
Amount........... 7_,/7" LAL ,77 . S 2 » W(},7’ Ao $5dt
Plumber.......... j/yf/ ..... /? T TS AT B “\ Srgj‘asf Sire of Tap. /.. '
N - I R
Date of Connection... 5 /7 5/ ~ \ Q\E ’ @"—‘”“
Size of Tap Made...~ -,y// . o \\\‘u; f\. N\ Gy \
Size Service Made oonlil o Z \‘ B U)

. - AL T D i n B
Size Main Tapped é e I \\ ) “ N ] 1 N’) \%
From Front Prop. Line to Curb Cock. - B N A \QB\J} 3 (4 Q) Q§ P\ \
From )(/ — Prop. Line to Curb Cock .( é , \\‘§ x ‘\\ 4G ~ r\\‘ ‘
Location of Meter..... O/Z/) ;\\\\\ \[\\ .Q\K ~ N “ S § ‘é
Type of Box L aQ ;-,6/{/ '_;5 ~ kL ‘“\%\ N :@ )
Depth of Main in St e @ 2 B . § FR l i g 2 z.

Lo 2 W n R T ¢ FRLw W o=
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- ' 2 O H § mquDmEﬁ A3 > S
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Ghecked by Engr. Dept. MAR 30 1951~ Q@S | ™ ™ N \ SR N
INCYERS Z N N
(U T4 ~riN=F W] T

Water tap permit issued to Eugene Wukasch, 3/6/1951.
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Rec!pt No/éﬁ:é@ Application for Sewer .Connection AV : T

; ‘Austin, Texas, _; T 15'/
To the Superintendent of Samtary Sewer Dtmsum, City of Austin, Texas

I ?éreby make applicarigh for gewer con ct Vn and mstructmns un _prepiis w1

/59 -\ Block == Outlot.___ = Division e’
g, z/ Plal,/ S th is to be used as a_ £ &2 -

In this place there are to be msta’lled /- fixtures. Plumbxng Perrmt No : é_“{_, é_ .é_ —
I agree to pay the Cily of Austin, the fegular ordin ance charge. :
Depth at Prop. Line_s.i._%.---h,.ww---- . 'lr éspe g, .

Stub Out } (" &= D/\ Ve - % 2/

Date.. 44 .. 7.7 o 5 | ' '

By- ﬁéur,d:, : ﬂ/

NOTE: Conneclion Instiiction MM/ /4—(_/

@’QZJJWWJ(, St Conds

Sewer connection permit issued to Kugene Wukasch, 3/6/1951.

Eugene Wukash na . . 2500 Inwood Place
k520 1 e - |
-‘ Inwood Park
Frame addition rear of residence to creates%gdry
67168 8/5/57 5000,00
owner 3 adde

Building permit issued to Eugene Wukasch for a wood-frame 2#d-story rear addition, 8/5/1957.
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1962 Sanborn Fire Insurance Map. In this view, the entire building appears to be a single story, with
a carport at the north end.



ADDRESS: . Z 572 0 Fpmer=mee” S W07 5 At 34
LoT: / BLOCK SUB. ‘
o
outLoT _ Fmirz it Lo
FIRE ZONE T lus& pisT. B 12 OCCUPAMA svv-etel o ittt pts. e bomst & /2
al - 7 ROOF
5=7-74 | 1avour RAMING | §~ 30- 7 FINAL | overrane
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BLDG. BLDG. BLDG. BLDG. BLDG. BLDG. PRINC. BLDG.
FLOOR JOI5T NECESSARY
FOUNDATION SIZE & O.C, BLDG, CONN, ACC. BLDG.
CEILING JOIST ROOM PAVED
-FR. SETBACK SIZE & O.C. VENTILATION PARKING
TOTAL & STUD SIZE STAIRS REQ.
MIN, SIDE YD, & 0.C. & NO.
SIDE STREET MASONRY ATTIC FIRE
YARD WALL STOPS REQ.
’ 4 v
OWNER: T rte S e et 4 e o cfiracior: CO e,
g-7-74
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/ Q
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]
\‘{’ }
N
QQ\"’
s
>
) n
7 =
V' 3/, 24

PJW et

O et flace

_ INSPECTOR Wd/ /Q

8/7/1974.

Building permit issued to Doris
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Wukasch to remodel existing house and enclose C. P. [carport],
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_address: £500 fiwoor S Ace J Perwmit: /EL&5/7 'Plat: /52
Lot: Block Subdivistbon:
/ Snveor AL
Qutlot -
Fire Zone: 2 Use Dist.p , Occupanty: /iZmoped Aos. 7 Lfarade Boe Lo
/4 — A 7-"- 7 q-[ ayont Framing R-2%<?% Final Commeyeial
Foundation IFloor joist / Bldg. Cenn. Parking
_Front setback | | ~ |l size & o.c. +__|| Room Vent. Exits
Total & Min. |{~7 celling joistgyﬁ/r Stairs Exit lights
side yard size & o.c. Fe Rails Fences
Side St. Yard stud size 2X Attic Vent. Corriders
- & o.c. 2.4 ) Insulation [/P~/F
Type Const, i W.Insulation | /7~// g‘{"d Vent.
ass
Spec.Permit # | Sheetrock Deadbolts
BOA Commercial Sheetrock Fireplaces
Occup. Sep.
Thru out
Owner: /7925 Doris We:dasec s Contiactor:  OWHN 2

NO wFR e~ -7 9

Building permit issued to Doris Wukasch to remodel the house to create a duplex, 6/8/1979.
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+
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Wastewater service permit 1ssued to A. A. Auger, 9/14/1979.
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